In accordance with Rule 18.6 of the Insolvency (England & Wales) Rules 2016.

$\begin{array}{l} AM10 \\ \text{Notice of administrator's progress report} \end{array}$



		For further information, please refer to our guidance at www.gov.uk/companieshouse
	Company details	
Company number	1 0 8 9 2 2 4 0	→ Filling in this form Please complete in typescript or in
Company name in full	Wigan Sports Management Limited	bold black capitals.
2	Administrator's name	I
ull forename(s)	Paul	
Gurname	Stanley	
3	Administrator's address	
Building name/number	340 Deansgate	
treet	Manchester	
Post town	M3 4LY	
County/Region		
ostcode		
Country		
	Administrator's name •	
ull forename(s)	Dean	Other administrator Use this section to tell us about
urname	Watson	another administrator.
5	Administrator's address 🏻	
Building name/number	340 Deansgate	Other administrator Use this section to tell us about
treet	Manchester	another administrator.
ost town	M3 4LY	
County/Region		
Postcode		
Country		

AM10 Notice of administrator's progress report

6	Period of progress report	
From date	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	
To date	$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	
7	Progress report	_
	☑ I attach a copy of the progress report	
8	Sign and date	
Administrator's signature	Signature	×
Signature date	$\begin{bmatrix} \frac{1}{2} & \frac{1}{8} & \frac{m}{0} & \frac{m}{5} \\ 2 & \frac{y}{2} & \frac{y}{2} & \frac{y}{2} \end{bmatrix}$	

Presenter information

You do not have to give any contact information, but if you do it will help Companies House if there is a query on the form. The contact information you give will be visible to searchers of the public record.

Contact name	Alex Coffey
Company name	Begbies Traynor (Central) LLP
Address	340 Deansgate
	Manchester
Post town	M3 4LY
County/Region	
Postcode	
Country	
DX	
Telephone	0161 837 1700

1

Checklist

We may return forms completed incorrectly or with information missing.

Please make sure you have remembered the following:

- ☐ The company name and number match the information held on the public Register.
- ☐ You have attached the required documents.
- ☐ You have signed the form.

Important information

All information on this form will appear on the public record.

■ Where to send

You may return this form to any Companies House address, however for expediency we advise you to return it to the address below:

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, Crown Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF14 3UZ. DX 33050 Cardiff.

Turther information

For further information please see the guidance notes on the website at www.gov.uk/companieshouse or email enquiries@companieshouse.gov.uk

This form is available in an alternative format. Please visit the forms page on the website at www.gov.uk/companieshouse

Continuation page
Name and address of insolvency practitioner

✓ What this form is for Use this continuation page to tell us about another insolvency practitioner where more than 2 are already jointly appointed. Attach this to the relevant form. Use extra copies to tell us of

X What this form is NOT for You can't use this continuation page to tell us about an appointment, resignation, removal or vacation of office.

→ Filling in this form Please complete in typescript or in bold black capitals.

All fields are mandatory unless specified or indicated by *

	additional insolvency practitioners.	
1	Appointment type	
	Tick to show the nature of the appointment: ☐ Administrator ☐ Receiver ☐ Manager ☐ Nominee ☐ Supervisor ☐ Liquidator ☐ Provisional liquidator	 ◆ You can use this continuation page with the following forms: VAM1, VAM2, VAM3, VAM4, VAM6, VAM7 CVA1, CVA3, CVA4 AM02, AM03, AM04, AM05, AM06, AM07, AM08, AM09, AM10, AM12, AM13, AM14, AM19, AM20, AM21, AM22, AM23, AM24, AM25 REC1, REC2, REC3 LIQ2, LIQ3, LIQ05, LIQ13, LIQ14, WU07, WU15 COM1, COM2, COM3, COM4 NDISC
2	Insolvency practitioner's name	
Full forename(s)	Gerald Maurice	
Surname	Krasner	
3	Insolvency practitioner's address	
Building name/number	340 Deansgate	
Street	Manchester	-
Post town	M3 4LY	-
County/Region		-
Postcode		
Country		



Paul Stanley, Dean Watson and Gerald M Krasner appointed joint administrators on 1 July 2020

The affairs, business and property of the Company are being managed by the joint administrators, who act as the Company's agents and without personal liability.

Wigan Sports Management Limited (In Administration)

Final Progress Report of the joint administrators

Period: 1 January 2021 to 28 May 2021

Important Notice

This final progress report has been produced by the administrators solely to comply with their statutory duty to report to creditors on the progress of the administration. The report is private and confidential and may not be relied upon, referred to, reproduced or quoted from, in whole or in part, by creditors for any purpose other than this report to them, or by any other person for any purpose whatsoever.

Contents

Appendices

Interpretation
Statutory information
Details of appointment of administrators
Progress during the period
Outcome for creditors
Administrators' proposals
Summary of steps taken during the administration
Remuneration and disbursements
Expenses
Creditors' rights
Assets that remain to be realised
Other relevant information
Conclusion

- 1. Account of receipts and payments
- 2. Summary of administrators' proposals, including major amendments to, and deviations from them
- 3. Time costs and disbursements
- 4. Statement of expenses

1. INTERPRETATION

<u>Expression</u> <u>Meaning</u>

"the Company" Wigan Sports Management Limited (In Administration)

"the administration" The appointment of administrators under Schedule B1 to the

Insolvency Act 1986 on 1 July 2020

"the administrators", "we",

"our", "us"

Paul Stanley, Dean Watson and Gerald M Krasner of Begbies Traynor

(Central) LLP, 340 Deansgate, Manchester, M3 4LY

"the Act" The Insolvency Act 1986 (as amended)

"the Rules" The Insolvency (England and Wales) Rules 2016 (as amended)

"secured creditor" and "unsecured creditor" Secured creditor, in relation to a company, means a creditor of the company who holds in respect of his debt a security over property of the company, and "unsecured creditor" is to be read accordingly

(Section 248(1)(a) of the Act)

"security"

(i) In relation to England and Wales, any mortgage, charge, lien or other security (Section 248(1)(b)(i) of the Act); and

(ii) In relation to Scotland, any security (whether heritable or moveable), any floating charge and any right of lien or preference and any right of retention (other than a right of

compensation or set off) (Section 248(1)(b)(ii) of the Act)

"preferential creditor"

Any creditor of the Company whose claim is preferential within

Sections 386, 387 and Schedule 6 to the Act.

2. STATUTORY INFORMATION

Name of Company Wigan Sports Management Limited

Trading name(s): Wigan Sports Management

Date of Incorporation: 31 July 2017

Company registered number: 10892240

Company registered office: c/o Begbies Traynor, 340 Deansgate, Manchester, M3

4LY

3. DETAILS OF APPOINTMENT OF ADMINISTRATORS

Names of administrators: Paul Stanley, Dean Watson and Gerald M Krasner,

Licensed Insolvency Practitioners of Begbies Traynor (Central) LLP, 340 Deansgate, Manchester, M3 4LY

Date of appointment: 1 July 2020

Court: Business and Property Courts in Manchester, Insolvency

& Companies List (ChD)

Court Case Number: 2020-MAN-000681

Person(s) making appointment /

application:

the directors of the Company

Acts of the administrators: The administrators act as officers of the court and as

agents of the Company without personal liability. Any act required or authorised under any enactment to be done by an administrator may be done by any one or more persons holding the office of administrator from time to

time.

EU Regulation on Insolvency

Proceedings:

Regulation (EU) No 2015/848 of the European Parliament and of the Council applies to these proceedings which are 'main proceedings' within the

meaning of Article 3 of the Regulation.

period.

4. PROGRESS DURING THE PERIOD

Receipts and Payments

Attached at Appendix 1 is our abstract of receipts and payments for the period from 1 January 2021 to 28 May 2021.

RECEIPTS

There have been no receipts during the period of this report.

PAYMENTS

Legal Fees

As outlined in the Joint Administrators' Proposals ("the Proposals"), we were appointed as Joint Administrators of the Company, Latics Realisations Limited (formerly known as Wigan Athletic A.F.C. Limited), Wigan Football Company Limited, Wigan Athletic Holdings Limited ("WAHL") and Wigan Property Holdings Limited ("the Group").

During the period, £10,000 has been paid to Walker Morris in relation to legal fees incurred.

Joint Administrators' Fees

Further details in relation to the Joint Administrators' fees may be found below.

Surplus to Liquidation

Surplus funds of £10,798 will be paid to the Joint Liquidators once their appointment has been confirmed.

This balance will be subject to any final interest and charges. Details of any interest and/or charges applied will be reported on by the Joint Liquidators.

What work has been done in the period of this report, why was that work necessary and what has been the financial benefit (if any) to creditors?

Details of the types of work that generally fall into the headings mentioned below are available on our firm's website - http://www.begbies-traynorgroup.com/work-details Under the following headings we have explained the specific work that has been undertaken on this case. Not every piece of work has been described, but we have sought to give a proportionate overview which provides sufficient detail to allow creditors to understand what has been done, why it was necessary and what financial benefit (if any) the work has provided to creditors.

The costs incurred in relation to each heading are set out in the Time Costs Analysis which is attached at Appendix 3. There is an analysis for the period of the report and also an analysis of time spent on the case since the date of our appointment. The details below relate to the work undertaken in the period of the report only. Our previous report contains details of the work undertaken since our appointment.

General case administration and planning

Insolvency practitioners are required to maintain records to demonstrate how the case was administered and to document the reasons for any decisions that materially affect the case.

Time charged to 'general case administration and planning' in the period of this report will include work of this nature, as well as:

- Sundry tasks such as photocopying and filing
- Extensive email communication between administrators, staff and the various parties involved in the administration
- Ongoing discussions in relation to the day to day running of the Football Club and Group companies with the retained employees and any other party
- Regular case reviews in line with our requirements
- All necessary issues relating to the handover of the Football Club and Group companies once the sale had completed
- Monitoring of potential distributions to be made by its subsidiary company, WAHL

Compliance with the Insolvency Act, Rules and best practice

Insolvency practitioners are required to comply with the provisions of The Insolvency Act and The Insolvency Rules, together with best practice guidelines laid down within the profession. This includes the undertaking of periodic reviews of case progression, ensuring that a specific bond is in place at the correct value, and the issuing of periodic reports on the progress of the insolvency to creditors.

Time charged to this area during the period includes:

- Reviews of bonding level
- Preparation, review and submission of 6 monthly progress report to creditors
- Case reviews

Realisation of assets

During the period of this report time has been monitoring potential distributions from various Group companies.

The sale of various assets belonging to associated companies completed on 30 March 2021.

Monies are expected to be available from WAHL once it has received creditor distributions from various lower group companies.

Dealing with all creditors' claims (including employees), correspondence and distributions

A nominal amount of time has been spent in relation to the claims of BDO and HMRC during the period of this report.

Other matters which includes seeking decision of creditors via deemed consent procedure and/or decision procedures, meetings, tax, litigation, pensions and travel

During the period time has been spent:

- Preparing and submitting the necessary pre-appointment VAT returns based on Company records provided
- Preparing and submitting the necessary post-appointment VAT returns
- Reviewing the position regarding Terminal Loss Relief
- > Reconciliation of all PAYE payments due to HMRC in relation to the Company's payroll
- Reconciliation of all pension payments due, and detailed correspondence with the Company's pension provider to ensure that the payments are correctly allocated to each employee's individual account

5. OUTCOME FOR CREDITORS

Secured creditor

There are no known secured creditors.

Preferential creditors

There are no known preferential claims.

Prescribed Part for unsecured creditors pursuant to Section 176A of the Act

Details of how the prescribed part is calculated have previously been provided in our statement of proposals.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no unsatisfied floating charges created or registered on or after 15 September 2003 and, consequently, there is no net property as defined in Section 176A(6) of the Act and, therefore, no prescribed part of net property is available for distribution to the unsecured creditors.

Unsecured creditors

As outlined in our previous progress report, the outcome for creditors is dependent on the outcome of the insolvencies of the various companies owned by the Company and its subsidiary, however we anticipate that sufficient funds will flow through to enable a dividend to be paid to the unsecured creditors of the Company. The timing and quantum of any dividends are uncertain at this stage.

Exit from administration

Once the Notice of move from administration to creditors' voluntary liquidation (Form AM22) has been registered at Companies House (which we anticipate shortly), our appointment as administrators will cease to have effect and the Company will be deemed to be subject to creditors' voluntary liquidation with Paul Stanley and Dean Watson of the former administrators acting in the capacity as joint liquidators of the Company.

ADMINISTRATORS' PROPOSALS

Attached at Appendix 2 is a summary of our proposals as approved by a decision of creditors via deemed consent procedure.

7. SUMMARY OF STEPS TAKEN DURING THE ADMINISTRATION

Full details of the steps taken by the Joint Administrators throughout the period of their appointment may be found in our previous progress report and in Section 4 above.

8. REMUNERATION & DISBURSEMENTS

Our remuneration has been fixed by approval of the creditors on 16 September 2020 obtained via a decision procedure by reference to the time properly given by us and the various grades of our staff calculated at the prevailing hourly charge out rates of Begbies Traynor (Central) LLP in attending to matters as set out in the fees estimate totalling $\pounds 45,420$, plus an increase of one third of time costs incurred.

We are also authorised to draw disbursements, including disbursements for services provided by our firm and/or entities within the Begbies Traynor group, in accordance with our firm's policy, details of which accompanied the Statement of proposals for achieving the purpose of administration and which are attached at Appendix 2 of this report.

Our time costs for the period from 1 January 2021 to 19 May 2021 amount to £8,091 which represents 22.8 hours at an average rate of £354.87 per hour.

Our cumulative time costs for the period from 1 July 2020 to 19 May 2021 amount to £31,981 which represents 102.6 hours at an average rate of £311.71 per hour.

The following further information in relation to our time costs and disbursements is set out at Appendix 3:

- ☐ Time Costs Analysis for the period 1 January 2021 to 19 May 2021
- ☐ Cumulative Time Costs Analysis for the period 1 July 2020 to 19 May 2021
- ☐ Begbies Traynor (Central) LLP's charging policy

To 19 May 2021, we have drawn the total sum of £585 on account of our remuneration, against total time costs of £31,981 incurred since the date of our appointment.

As can be seen from the information above, our fees estimate has not been exceeded. We are pleased to report that we do not anticipate that it is likely to be exceeded if matters progress to conclusion as envisaged.

Creditors should note that additional time costs will be incurred between the drafting of the report and the appointment of the Joint Liquidators being confirmed at Companies House. Any costs paid by the Joint Liquidators in relation to the Former Joint Administrators' costs will be reported by the Joint Liquidators where necessary.

Disbursements

To 28 May 2021, no disbursements have been drawn.

Category 2 Disbursements

No Category 2 Disbursements have been incurred.

A copy of 'A Creditors Guide to Administrators' Fees (E&W) 2017' which provides guidance on creditors' rights on how to approve and monitor an Administrator's remuneration and on how the remuneration is set can be obtained online at www.begbies-traynor.com/creditorsguides Alternatively, if you require a hard copy of the Guide, please contact our office and we will arrange to send you a copy.

9. FXPENSES

A statement of the expenses incurred and discharged by us during the period of this progress report is attached at Appendix 4. A cumulative statement of expenses also appears at Appendix 4 which details the expenses incurred since the date of our appointment.

Creditors will recall that we estimated that the expenses of the administration would total £1,206.

As can be seen from the above, that estimate has been exceeded due to the legal fees incurred in relation to the sale of the business and assets of the Group.

10. CREDITORS' RIGHTS

Right to request further information

Pursuant to Rule 18.9 of the Rules, within 21 days of the receipt of this report a secured creditor, or an unsecured creditor with the concurrence of at least 5% in value of the unsecured creditors including that creditor (or an unsecured creditor with less than 5% in value of the unsecured creditors, but with the permission of the court) may request in writing that we provide further information about our remuneration or expenses (other than pre-administration costs) which have been incurred during the period of this progress report.

Right to make an application to court

Pursuant to Rule 18.34 of the Rules, any secured creditor or an unsecured creditor with the concurrence of at least 10% in value of the unsecured creditors including that creditor, (or any unsecured creditors with less than 10% in value of the unsecured creditors, but with the permission of the court) may within 8 weeks of receipt of this progress report make an application to court on the grounds that the remuneration charged or the expenses incurred by us during the period of this progress report are excessive or, in relation to the basis fixed for our remuneration, inappropriate.

11. ASSETS THAT REMAIN TO BE REALISED

We anticipate that funds will be received in our capacity as sole shareholder of Wigan Athletic Holdings Limited, which will enable a dividend to be paid to the unsecured creditors of the Company during the course of the liquidation.

12. OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION

Report on Directors conduct

As detailed in our statement of proposals, we have a duty to submit a report to the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy on the conduct of the directors. We have complied with our duties in this respect.

Investigations completed

As explained in our previous progress report, there are no matters that require additional investigation.

Connected party transactions

There are no connected party transactions to report.

Use of personal information

Please note that although the administration is being concluded, in discharging our remaining duties as Joint Administrators, we may need to access and use personal data, being information from which a living person can be identified. Where this is necessary, we are required to comply with data protection legislation. If you are an individual and you would like further information about your rights in relation to our use of your personal data, you can access the same at https://www.begbiestraynorgroup.com/privacy-notice If you require a hard copy of the information, please do not hesitate to contact us.

13. CONCLUSION

Finally, our appointment as liquidators will be confirmed when the relevant forms moving the Company from administration to liquidation are filed by Companies House.

Dean Watson Joint Administrator

Date: 28 May 2021

Paul Stanley Joint Administrator

Gerald Krasner Joint Administrator

ACCOUNT OF RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS

Period: 1 January 2021 to 28 May 2021

	From 01/01/2021 To 28/05/2021 £	From 01/07/2020 To 28/05/2021 £
ASSET REALISATIONS		
Cash at Bank	NIL	22,277.34
	NIL	22,277.34
COST OF REALISATIONS		
Administrators' Fees	585.00	585.00
Legal Fees	10,000.00	10,800.00
Surplus to Liquidation	10,797.84	10,797.84
Statutory Advertising	NIL	94.50
	(21,382.84)	(22,277.34)
	(21,382.84)	NIL

SUMMARY OF ADMINISTRATORS' PROPOSALS, INCLUDING MAJOR AMENDMENTS TO AND DEVIATIONS FROM THEM

Proposals approved by decision of creditors via a deemed consent procedure

Purpose of the Administration

We are required to set out our proposals for achieving the purpose of the administration which in this context means one of the objectives specified in paragraph 3 of Schedule B1 to the Act as set out at section 3 of this report above.

For the reasons set out in this report, we presently consider that it is not reasonably practicable to achieve the objective specified in sub-paragraph 3(1)(a), and consequently the most appropriate objective to pursue in this case is that specified in sub-paragraph 3(1)(b), namely achieving a better result for the Company's creditors as a whole than would be likely if the Company were wound up (without first being in administration).

It is not reasonably practicable to achieve the objective specified in sub-paragraph 3(1)(a), namely rescuing the business as a going concern as there is no business to rescue and the position of the subsidiary companies is uncertain.

The Joint Administrators propose to remain in office as administrators to deal with the following:

- To await the outcome of the insolvency processes of the Subsidiary companies

In the event that sufficient funds are realised, we will take steps to verify creditor claims and to distribute funds accordingly.

Exit from Administration

The prospect of a distribution being made to unsecured creditors in this matter is subject to the outcome of the Administrations of the immediate subsidiary company and the two companies by the subsidiary.

Creditors' voluntary liquidation ("CVL")

In the event that distributions are made by the subsidiary company then we confirm that there are no secured creditors in this matter and that a distribution will be made to the unsecured creditors of the Company which is not a distribution of the prescribed part¹.

We have the power to make a distribution of the prescribed part to unsecured creditors in the administration but any other distribution to them requires the permission of court. It is considered that the court will only grant such permission in exceptional circumstances where the normal course for making distributions to unsecured creditors in a voluntary liquidation is inappropriate. Additionally, there may be matters for enquiry concerning a company's affairs which are not within the scope of an administrator's powers and which can only be properly dealt with by a liquidator.

¹ Insolvency Act 1986, Sch B1, para 83(1)

Consequently, as soon as we are satisfied that we have fully discharged our duties as administrators and that the purpose of the administration has been fully achieved, we propose to deliver a notice of moving from administration creditors' voluntary liquidation to the Registrar of Companies. Upon the registration of such notice our appointment as administrators shall cease to have effect and the Company will automatically be placed into liquidation. Paragraph 83(7) provides:

The liquidators for the purpose of the winding up shall be-

- (a) a person nominated by the creditors of the company in the prescribed manner and within the prescribed period, or
- (a) if no person is nominated under paragraph (a), the administrator.

We confirm that as part of our proposals we propose that we, or in the event of there being a subsequent change of persons appointed as administrator, the individuals in office as such immediately prior to the Company being placed into liquidation, do act as joint liquidators in the subsequent winding up of the Company. Creditors may nominate a different person as the proposed liquidator provided that the nomination is made after the receipt of the proposals and before the proposals are approved. The appointment of a person nominated as liquidator takes effect by the creditors' approval, with or without modification, of our proposals.

It is proposed that for the purpose of the winding up, any act required or authorised under any enactment to be done by the joint liquidators is to be done by all or any one or more of the persons for the time being holding office.

Dissolution

In the event that no monies are distributed by the subsidiary company then the Company may have insufficient property to enable a distribution to be made to unsecured creditors. Consequently, as soon as we are satisfied that we have fully discharged our duties as administrators and that the purpose of the administration has been fully achieved, we propose to deliver a notice of moving from administration to dissolution to the Registrar of Companies. Upon the registration of such notice our appointment as administrators ceases to have effect, and at the end of three months the Company will automatically be dissolved.

Where an administrator sends such a notice of dissolution to the Registrar of Companies, he must also file a copy of the notice with the court and send a copy to each creditor of the Company, and on application by any interested party the court may suspend or disapply the automatic dissolution of the Company.

Extending the administration

However, it may transpire that it is not possible to finalise the administration as envisaged within one year of the date of our appointment. The appointment of an administrator shall cease to have effect at the end of the period of one year beginning with the date on which it takes effect. However, our term of office may be extended either by court order for a specified period or by consent of the creditors for a specified period not exceeding twelve months. It may therefore become necessary at some future time for us to seek creditor consent to extending the period of the administration for up to a further twelve months following the anniversary of our appointment in order to ensure that the objective of the administration can be fully achieved.

TIME COSTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

- a. Begbies Traynor (Central) LLP's charging policy;
- b. Time Costs Analysis for the period from 1 January 2021 to 19 May 2021 and;
- c. Cumulative Time Costs Analysis for the period from 1 July 2020 to 19 May 2021

BEGBIES TRAYNOR CHARGING POLICY

INTRODUCTION

This note applies where a licensed insolvency practitioner in the firm is acting as an office holder of an insolvent estate and seeks creditor approval to draw remuneration on the basis of the time properly spent in dealing with the case. It also applies where further information is to be provided to creditors regarding the office holder's fees following the passing of a resolution for the office holder to be remunerated on a time cost basis. Best practice guidance² requires that such information should be disclosed to those who are responsible for approving remuneration.

In addition, this note applies where creditor approval is sought to make a separate charge by way of expenses or disbursements to recover the cost of facilities provided by the firm. It also applies where payments are to be made to parties other than the firm, but in relation to which the office holder, the firm or any associate has an interest. Best practice guidance³ indicates that such charges should be disclosed to those who are responsible for approving the office holder's remuneration, together with an explanation of how those charges are calculated.

OFFICE HOLDER'S FEES IN RESPECT OF THE ADMINISTRATION OF INSOLVENT ESTATES

The office holder has overall responsibility for the administration of the estate. He/she will delegate tasks to members of staff. Such delegation assists the office holder as it allows him/her to deal with the more complex aspects of the case and ensures that work is being carried out at the appropriate level. There are various levels of staff that are employed by the office holder and these appear below.

The firm operates a time recording system which allows staff working on the case along with the office holder to allocate their time to the case. The time is recorded at the individual's hourly rate in force at that time which is detailed below.

EXPENSES INCURRED BY OFFICE HOLDERS IN RESPECT OF THE ADMINISTRATION OF INSOLVENT ESTATES

Best practice guidance classifies expenses into two broad categories:

- □ Category 1 disbursements (approval not required) specific expenditure that is directly related to the case and referable to an independent external supplier's invoice. All such items are charged to the case as they are incurred.
- Category 2 disbursements (approval required) items of expenditure that are directly related to the case which include an element of shared or allocated cost and are based on a reasonable method of calculation, but which are not payable to an independent third party.
 - (A) The following items of expenditure are charged to the case (subject to approval):
 - Internal meeting room usage for the purpose of physical meetings of creditors is charged at the rate of £100 (London £150) per meeting;
 - Car mileage is charged at the rate of 45 pence per mile;
 - Storage of books and records (when not chargeable as a Category 1 disbursement) is charged on the basis that the number of standard archive boxes held in storage for a

² Statement of Insolvency Practice 9 (SIP 9) – Remuneration of insolvency office holders in England & Wales

³ Ibid 1

particular case bears to the total of all archive boxes for all cases in respect of the period for which the storage charge relates;

- (B) The following items of expenditure will normally be treated as general office overheads and will not be charged to the case although a charge may be made where the precise cost to the case can be determined because the item satisfies the test of a Category 1 disbursement:
- Telephone and facsimile
- Printing and photocopying
- Stationery

Additional payments received by Eddisons Commercial Limited from purchasers where assets are disposed of by way of auction

In addition to the charges of Eddisons Commercial Limited detailed above for providing the services to the office holder, where any machinery and business assets (other than freehold/leasehold property) are disposed of by way of auction, Eddisons Commercial Limited will also receive a payment from the purchaser, known as a buyer's premium, equivalent to 15% of the successful bid. Where any freehold/leasehold property is disposed of by way of auction, Eddisons Commercial Limited will also receive a payment from the purchaser, known as a buyer's administration fee, in the sum of £600. It is standard auction industry practice for a buyer's premium and buyer's administration fee to be charged. The buyer's premium and buyer's administration fee is paid by the purchaser of the assets and is not paid by the office holder from the assets of the estate.

BEGBIES TRAYNOR CHARGE-OUT RATES

Begbies Traynor is a national firm. The rates charged by the various grades of staff that may work on a case are set nationally, but vary to suit local market conditions. The rates applying to the Manchester and Newcastle office as at the date of this report are as follows:

	Charge-out rate (£ per hour)
Grade of staff	1 December 2018 –
	until further notice
Partner	495
Director	445
Senior Manager	395
Manager	345
Assistant Manager	250
Senior Administrator	225
Administrator	175
Junior Administrator	140
Support	140

Time spent by support staff such as secretarial, administrative and cashiering staff is charged directly to cases. It is not carried as an overhead.

Time is recorded in 6 minute units.

SIP9 Wigan Sports Management Limited - Administration - 10W/403.ADM: Time Costs Analysis From 01/01/2021 To 19/05/2021

Shaff Grade		ConsultantPartner	Director	Sor Mingr	Magr	Asst Magr	S nr Admin	Admin	Jes Admin	Support	Total Hours	The Cost E	Average
General Case Administration	Case planting	3.0			a;						7.0	1.830.00	467.50
	Administration				u;			0.1	0.5		=	260.00	235.36
	Total for General Case Administration and Planning:	3.0			1.5			0.1	0.5		5.1	2,090.00	409.80
Compliance with the Insolvency Act, Rules and best	Aspontment												83.3
practice	Banking and Bonding		0.1						21		1.3	2:2.50	163.46
	Case Closure	0.5									0.5	247.50	455.00
	Statutory reporting and statement of affairs	2.0	1.0		278			25.5			7.7	2,54:,50	330.06
	Total for Compilance with the Insolvency Act, Rules and best practice:	2.5	0.2		3.1			2.5	1,2		9.5	3.001.50	315.95
Investigations	CDDA and hiestgations												00.0
	Total for investigations:												0.00
Realisation of assets	Deat collection												02.0
	Property, business and asset sales	6.5									2.0	1,980.00	455.00
	Retention of Title-Third party assets												6.53
	Total for Realisation of assets:	0.4									4.0	1,980.00	495.00
Trading	Trading												833
	Total for Trading:												0.00
Dealing with all creditors claims (including employees).	Secured												83
correspondence and distributions	Others							7:0			5:0	70.05	175.00
	Creditors committee												8
	Total for Dealing with all creditors claims (including employees), correspondence and distributions:							9.4			70	70.00	175.00
Other matters which includes seeking decisions of creditors,	Seeking deas ons of creditors												65.5
meetings, tax, litigation, pensions and travel	Weetings												02.0
	Other												883
	Тах				म्			÷.			1.5	780.50	251,77
	L'igator												833
	Total for Other matters:				4.			1.7			3.1	780.50	251.77
	Total hours by staff grade:	9.5	0.2		6.0			4.7	1.7		22.1		
	Total time cost by staff grade:	4.702.50	89.00		2,070.00			822.50	238.00			7,922.00	
	Average hourly rate £:	495.00	445.00	0.00	345.00	0.00	00:0	175.00	140.00	00:0			358.46
	Total fees drawn to date £:											0.00	

Shaff Grade		Consultant/Partner	Director	Saw Mengar	Magr	Azat Magr	Ser Admits	Action	Jir Adeih	Support	Total Hours 1	Time Cost 2 hourly rade 2	Average Durity Title 2
General Case Administration and Planning	Case planting												8.3
•	Administration	0.2									0.2	30'66	755.00
	Total for General Case Administration and Planning:	0.2									0.2	99.00	435.00
Compliance with the Insofvency Act, Rules and best	Appointment												00:0
practice	Banking and Bonding									3.0	0.5	70.05	149.00
	Case Closure												63.0
	Statutory reporting and statement of affairs												00:0
	Total for Compilance with the Insolvency Act, Rules and best practice:									0.5	0.5	70.00	140.00
Investigations	CDDA and nvestgations												60.0
	Total for investigations:												0.00
Realisation of assets	Deat collection												03.3
	Property, business and asset sales												65.0
	Retention of Title-Third party assets												03.0
	Total for Realisation of assets:												0.00
Trading	Trading												03:3
	Total for Trading:												0.00
Dealing with all creditors claims (including employees).	Secured												83 3
correspondence and distributions	Others												000
	Creditors committee												83
	Total for Dealing with all creditors claims (including employees), correspondence and distributions:												0.00
Other matters which includes seeking decisions of creditors.	Seeking decs ons of creditors												0.00
meetings, tax, littgation, pensions and travel	Weetings												03:3
	Other												63.0
	Тах												83
	Ligator												03.3
	Total for Other matters:												0.00
	Total hours by staff grade:	0.2								0.5	0.7		
	Total time cost by staff grade:	99.00								70.00		169.00	
	Average hourly rate £:	495.00	00:0	00.0	0.00	00.0	0.00	0.00	0.00	140.00			241.43
	Total fees drawn to date £:											0.00	

SIP9 Wigan Sports Management Limited - Administration - 10WI403.ADM : Time Costs Analysis From 01/07/2020 To 19/05/2021

Shaff Grade		ConsultantePartner	Director	Sor Magr	Mingr	Asst Magr	Sor Admin	Admin	Jnr Admin	Support	Total Hours	Total Hours This Cost 2 hourly rate 2	Average outly rate £
General Case Administration and Pianning	Case planting	5115	6.0		2.1			9.00	1.0		26.8	33.536.6	338.17
	Administration				#;			5.3	1.1		3.9	729.00	165.92
	Total for General Case Administration and Planning:	11.9	6.0		2.6			13.2	2.1		30.7	9,792.00	318.96
Compliance with the Insolvency Act. Rules and best	Appointment	5,7			r.			2.2			7.5	2,313,50	375.13
practice	Banking and Bonding		0.3		u;			6,1	2.1	2.5	7.7	1,338.50	173.83
	Case Closure	0.5									0.5	247.50	455.00
	Statutory reporting and statement of affairs	6.3	0.1		10.4			1.0.0	0.4		27.2	377257	3:4.60
	Total for Compliance with the Insolvency Act, Rules and best practice:	10.8	7.0		12.2			14.1	2.5	2.9	42.9	12,956.50	302.02
Investigations	CDDA and nvestgations	1.5	7:0		2.5			3.2			7.1	2,170.50	305.70
	Total for Investigations:	1.5	70		2.0			3.2			1.7	2,170.50	305.70
Realisation of assets	Dept collection												8.3
	Property, business and asset sales	0,4	0.2		5						7 7	2,136.00	485.91
	Reservion of Title-Third party assets												833
	Total for Realisation of assets:	4.0	0.2		0.2						7	2,138.00	485.91
Trading	Trading												83.3
	Total for Trading:												0.00
Dealing with all creditors cialms (including employees).	Secured												8.5
correspondence and distributions	Others	5.5	0.5					1.4			7.3	2,276.50	3:1.85
	Creditors committee	0.5									0.5	247.50	455.00
	Total for Dealing with all creditors claims (including employees), correspondence and distributions:	3.2	0.5					4.1			7.8	2,524.00	323.59
Other matters which includes seeking decisions of creditors.	Seeking deas ons of deditors							3.1			3.1	542.50	175.00
meetings, tax, litigation, pensions and travel	Weetigs												82.5
	Other				3			0.1			0.2	\$2.00	260.00
	Тах		1.0		ų.			io ci			6.4	1,051,50	244.53
	Ligator												833
	Total for Other matters:		0.1		1.7			5.8			7.6	1,646.00	216.58
	Total hours by staff grade:	31.4	2.5		18.7			40.4	9.4	2.9	100.5		
	Total time cost by staff grade:	15,543.00	1,112.50		6,451.50			7.070.00	644.00	406.00		31,227.00	
	Average hourly rate £:	495.00	445.00	0.00	345.00	0.00	00'0	175.00	140.00	140.00			310.72
	Total fees drawn to date £:											0.00	

į	₹	
ĺ	€	
ľ	š	
ŀ	2	
Ì	⋈	
Ì	Ĕ	
	_	
ļ	=	
į	=	
į	Z	
ŀ	₹	
ŀ	9	
ľ	≡	
į	Ξ	
ŀ	=	
	Щ	
	≚	
l	+	
	¥	
	ď	١
ĺ	v.	
ĺ	۶	
١	۲	
į	ž	
	ŏ	
ĺ	٧	
	Φ	
	Ш	
	-	
į	Ξ	
ĺ	3	
ĺ	S	
١	3	
Ì	ő	
ŀ	7	
į	<u>}</u>	
	<u>₹</u>	
	- 8 <u>4</u> W	
	on - 84₩	
	3[10n - 84₩	
	iralion - 84W	
	ISiration - 84W	
	nnistration - 84W	
	iministration - 84W	
	Administration - 84W	
	- Administration - 84W	
	ed - Administration - 84W	
	ited - Administration - 84W	
	mited - Administration - 84W	
	Imited - Administration - 84W	
	ni Limited - Administration - 84W	
	eni Limited - Administration - 84W	
	meni Limited - Administration - 84W	
	nement Limited - Administration - 84W	
	adement Limited - Administration - 84W	
	anadement Limited - Administration - 84W	
	Wanagemeni Limited - Administration - 84W/	
	s Management Limited - Administration - 84W	
	N S	
	STIS V	
	n Sports v	
	Vician Sports v	
	Widan Sports M	

U,

sian Grade		ConsultantiPartner	Director	Sor Mage	Bingr	Asst Magr	Snr Admits	Admin	Jnr Admin	Support	Tobal Hours	Thre Coet & Average	Average certly rate £
General Case Administration and Ptanning	Case planning												03:0
,	Administration	0.2									0.2	30.96	455.00
	Total for General Case Administration and Planning:	0.2									0.2	99.00	495.00
Compliance with the Insolvency Act, Rules and best	Appointment												0.00
practice	Banking and Bonding						4.0			3.0	0.9	160.00	177.78
	Case Closure												63.3
	Statutory reporting and statement of affairs	1.0									1.0	455.00	455.00
	Total for Compilance with the Insolvency Act, Rules and best practice:	1.0					7.0			0.5	1.3	655.00	344.74
Investigations	CDDA and nvestgations												83.3
	Total for Investigations:												0.00
Realisation of assets	Deat collector												0.50
	Property, pusiness and asset sales												83.5
	Resention of Title/Third party assets												00.0
	Total for Resilsation of assets:												00:0
Trading	Trading												83
	Total for Trading:												00.0
Dealing with all creditors claims (including employees),	Secured												8.3
correspondence and distributions	Others												00.0
	Creditors committee												0.0
	Total for Dealing with all creditors claims (including employees), correspondence and distributions:												0.00
Other matters which includes seeking decisions of creditors.	Seeking decisions of creditors												6.69
meetings, tax, litigation. pensions and travei	Weetigs												00.0
	Other												0.00
	Тах												0.00
	Ligator												83.3
	Total for Other matters:												0.00
	Total hours by staff grade:	1.2					5 .0			9:0	2.1		
	Total time cost by staff grade:	594.00					90.08			00.07		754.00	
	Average hourly rate £:	495.00	00:0	0.00	0.00	00:0	225.00	00:0	00:0	140.00			359.05
	Total fees drawn to date £:											0.00	

STATEMENT OF EXPENSES FOR THE PERIOD

Type of expense	Name of party with whom expense incurred	Amount incurred £	Amount discharged £	Balance (to be discharged) £	
Expenses incurred with entities not within the Begbies Traynor Group					
Legal Fees	Walker Morris	£10,000	£10,000	Nil	
Postage	Postworks	£1.01	Nil	£1.01	

CUMULATIVE STATEMENT OF EXPENSES

Type of expense	Name of party with whom expense incurred	Amount incurred
		£
Legal Fees	Brabners	£800
Legal Fees	Walker Morris	£10,000
Postage	Postworks	£1.01
Bond	Marsh Limited	£30
Bond	AUA Insolvency Risk Services	£18
Statutory Advertising	Courts Advertising	£94.50